

A 501(c)(3) Charitable Organization In Support of Academic Excellence 8800 Grossmont College Drive, El Cajon, CA 92020

Management Employee Handbook

Foundation for Grossmont and Cuyamaca College

Management Employee Handbook

Table of Contents

		<u>Page</u>
	Table of Contents	i
Section 1:	Employee Status	1
Section 2:	Hiring	
Section 3:	Hiring of Management Personnel	1
Section 4:	Hours of Work	
Section 5:	Compensation	
Section 6:	Benefits	
Section 7:	Employee Evaluation	3
Section 8:	Staff Development/Professional Growth	3
Section 9:	Sick Leave and Personal Necessity Leave	4
Section 10:	Long-Term Leaves of Absence	
Section 11:	Short-Term Leaves of Absence	8
Section 12:	Industrial Accident and Illness Leave	
Section 13:	Family Care Leave	11
Section 14:	Vacation	
Section 15:	Holidays/Professional Development Day	15
Section 16:	Management Employees' Expenses	
Section 17:	Complaint and Problem Resolution Procedures	
Section 18:	Personnel Records	
Section 19:	Conflict of Interest	
Section 20:	Secondary Employment	
Section 21:	Sexual Harassment	
Section 22:	Alcohol and Drugs	
Section 23:	Emergencies and Natural Disasters	20
	Acknowledgement of Receipt of Management Employee Handbook .	
	Salary Schedule A	\-1
	Employment Categories of the Foundation for Grossmont	
		3-1

Disclaimer

When a grant/agreement funding an employee's position imposes requirements that conflict with statements in this handbook, the grant's requirements will be implemented. The most likely impact of this requirement is on holidays, e.g. the grant requires that Cesar Chavez Day be observed as a paid holiday, but allows only one paid holiday in February, rather than the two described in this handbook.

Section 1: Employee Status

Management Employees

All employees designated as "Management Employees" by the Board of Directors shall be covered by the provisions of this Handbook and other policies of the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Hiring

The Director, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for the recruitment, selection, and appointment of candidates for vacant management positions covered by this Handbook, subject to ratification by the Board of Directors.

Consistent with the principles of equal employment opportunity, the Foundation shall seek quality leadership, provide career opportunities for its current managers, and continue to recruit from the best available resources.

Section 3: Hiring of Management Personnel

The Director of the Foundation is authorized to post job opening notices and recruit eligible candidates for Foundation management positions. The interview and selection process will normally include candidate interviews with a search committee. The Director shall make the final selection of the employee to be hired, subject to ratification by the Board of Directors.

Section 4: Hours of Work

The workday is typically eight (8) hours within a twenty-four (24) hour period, and the workweek is typically forty (40) hours of work during any five (5) consecutive days.

Alternate and flexible work schedules can be proposed by an employee, and must be approved by the Director.

Section 5: Compensation

5.1. Compensation/Philosophy--What does the organization want to pay for?

Evaluation, professional development, and compensation systems shall be integrated and based upon the following core components:

- Leadership
- Expertise
- Outcomes
- Complexity
- Difficulty

5.2. Initial Placement on the Salary Schedule

5.2.1. From Within the Foundation

An employee continuing from the preceding year who is transferred from another Foundation salary schedule to the Management Salary Schedule shall first have his/her salary placement determined on the appropriate salary range of the former salary schedule for the next year in accordance with the existing regulations, and then be allocated to the lowest step within the designated salary range which provides at least a five (5) percent increase.

A management employee who is promoted to another position in the Foundation shall be placed at the appropriate range of his/her promotional position and placed on the column that approximates a minimum five (5) percent increase.

5.2.2. New to the Foundation

A manager new to the Foundation shall be placed on the step of the appropriate salary range based upon an evaluation of the type and level of his/her previous experience, as recommended by the Auxiliary Director and approved by the Board of Directors.

5.3. Salary Deductions

In the case where managers are absent without pay for any reason, the number of workdays in the twelve-month year (245) will be used to adjust their annual salary.

5.4. Overtime Pay

Management employees are not entitled to overtime pay.

Section 6: Benefits

Foundation for Grossmont and Cuyamaca Colleges provides an insurance benefit package for all management employees and their eligible dependents that includes medical, dental and related benefits. A management employee must have a 50 percent or more regular employment contract to be eligible for these benefits.

Since Foundation insurance carriers may change from time to time, and since employee benefits are reviewed and modified on a regular basis, details of the benefit plans are not included in this Handbook, but details are periodically distributed to all staff members. Benefits shall be subject to change.

Section 7: Employee Evaluation

It shall be the policy of the Board of Directors to periodically evaluate the performance of management personnel of the. Foundation for Grossmont and Cuyamaca Colleges.

Section 8: Staff Development/Professional Growth

Management personnel are encouraged to develop and enhance their professional skills. All Management employees will receive eight (8) hours of professional development per calendar year.

Section 9: Sick Leave And Personal Necessity Leave

9.1. Eligibility

Sick leave benefits shall be available to all management employees covered by this Handbook. Any time taken as sick leave which, upon conclusion of employment with the Foundation does not have a sufficient accumulation from which to draw, shall be recovered from the management employee.

9.2. Sick Leave Allowance

Management employees with a full-time assignment shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of one (1) day per month of service, beginning with the first month in which fifteen (15) calendar days were served in the employment of the Foundation. The accrual shall be proportionate to and for assignments less than full time. Unused, full-salary sick leave shall accrue without limitation. A management employee who resigns, and is rehired within thirty-nine (39) months of the last date of paid service, shall have all accumulated, unused full-salary sick leave credits restored.

9.3.

Authorized Uses

Absence from duty because of illness, injury, exposure to contagious disease, or disability due to pregnancy shall constitute proper uses of sick leave. Accumulated sick leave may also be used for personal necessity, herein defined, and in connection with leaves arising from industrial accident and illness.

9.4.

Donation of Sick Leave

The Foundation will allow the donation of sick leave to any individual employee who has suffered a long-term illness or disability and who has exhausted all accrued full paid leave and other full paid time off. Donated sick leave will be considered as personally earned sick leave for purpose of determining balance of half-pay sick leave. Any sick leave donated after employee has exhausted half-pay sick leave allowance will be retroactively applied to replace half-pay sick leave used.

The offer to donate shall be made on a signed pledge form which will be prepared by the Director. Solicitation of donations may be made by the individual requesting donations or by a representative of such individual. Once the donated sick leave is actually credited, the transfer of leave is irrevocable. No employee may donate less than eight (8) hours or more than forty (40) hours of sick leave per fiscal year. The offer to donate sick leave shall remain valid for one (1) year from the date of signature on the pledge form.

9.5.

Extenuating Circumstances and Special Conditions

Quarantines - Management employees who are unable to perform their duties because of legally established quarantines shall be entitled to the same leave as though they were personally ill, provided a certificate from the County Health Department is filed verifying the quarantine.

9.6. Personal Necessity Leave

- **9.6.1.** A maximum of six (6) days of accumulated, full-salary sick leave credit may be used in any school year for any of the following:
 - **9.6.1.1.** Death or serious illness of a family member. (See Bereavement Leave, Section 11.3.2.)
 - **9.6.1.2.** Accident involving the management employee's person or property, or that of his/her immediate family.
 - **9.6.1.3.** Appearance in court as a litigant, or as a witness under an official order.
 - **9.6.1.4.** Circumstances that are serious in nature and cannot be disregarded and which necessitate the immediate attention of the employee.
- **9.6.2.** Absences for personal necessity shall not be granted during a scheduled vacation or leave of absence.
- **9.6.3.** Requests for personal necessity leave shall be made orally to the immediate supervisor and, upon return to duty, a completed leave of absence form shall be filed.

Section 10: Long-Term Leaves of Absence

10.1. Eligibility

Long-term leaves of absence (those in excess of 30 calendar days) may be granted to employees covered by this Handbook. All long-term leaves are taken without salary, except the first thirty (30) days of military leave.

10.2. Application for Benefits

All requests for leave shall be in writing, upon the appropriate form prescribed and provided by the Foundation with all necessary documentation attached, such as physician's statement of incapacity or prepared study program. Requests shall be submitted to the appropriate manager in advance of the intended leave.

10.3. Authorized Uses

Long-term leaves are authorized for the following uses:

10.4. Health Leaves (including leave due to pregnancy)

A management employee with insufficient leave or accrued employment time to qualify for sick leave, or who desires not to utilize accrued sick leave, may apply for health leave without pay. All requests for health leave must be accompanied by a physician's statement of incapacity, and return to duty is dependent upon evidence of recovery.

10.5. Long-Term Military Leave (more than 30 workdays per year)

- **10.5.1.** A management employee shall be granted leave for the purpose of serving in the armed forces for an extended period of time. The leave may be renewed indefinitely, except when the service commitment is voluntarily extended.
- **10.5.2. Salary Entitlement** (first 30 days) A management employee who has a minimum of one (1) year of prior service with the Auxiliary shall receive his/her salary for the first thirty (30) days of ordered military duty. Pay for such purposes (deemed to be one month's salary) shall not exceed thirty (30) days in any fiscal year.

10.5.3.

Return to the Foundation - A management employee, upon release from active duty, shall have the right of reemployment at any time within six (6) months of the termination of the ordered service.

However, the management employee shall not be entitled to sick leave, vacation, or salary for the period he/she was on leave, except as noted above.

10.5.4

Forfeiture of Foundation Position - A management employee who voluntarily requests and obtains an extension of his/her tour of duty shall forfeit all rights of return to a position with the Foundation.

10.6. Other Leaves

A management employee may be granted a long-term leave of absence at the discretion of the Director.

10.7. Length of Leave

Long-term leaves of absence may be granted for periods up to a year, and

may be extended on a year-to-year basis upon recommendation of the Director and approval of the Board of Directors. The total period of leave may not exceed three (3) full years in addition to any remaining portion of the year in which the leave began.

10.8. Retention of Earned Sick Leave

Management employees who are granted long-term leaves of absence shall retain any sick leave which they may have accumulated at the time of the leave, but shall not accumulate any additional sick leave rights during the leave period.

10.9. Return from Long-Term Leave

At the expiration of a leave of absence, a management employee shall be returned to the position formerly held, or to a position of equal classification level and of similar requirements of ability and skill; or, the employee may request a position in a lower grade.

Section 11: Short-Term Leaves of Absence

11.1. Eligibility

Short-term leaves of absence of less than one (1) calendar month may be granted to any management employee covered by this Handbook.

11.2. Application

Requests for short-term leaves shall be in writing, upon the appropriate form prescribed and provided by the Foundation, and shall be filed with the management employee's supervisor in advance of the intended leave, unless otherwise stated by the provisions of the specific leave.

11.3. Authorized Leaves

Short-term leaves are those which include the following:

11.3.1. Paternity/Adoption Leave - Upon the birth of a child, or in order for any employee to make final arrangements to adopt a child, a management employee, upon verbal request, shall be granted one (1) day of leave without loss of pay. Upon return to duty the management employee must submit the appropriate leave request form and validating documents.

- 11.3.2. Bereavement Leave Absence without loss of salary for a period not to exceed three (3) days, (five (5) days if minimum travel of 400 miles one-way is required) may be granted to a management employee upon the death of a member of his/her immediate family or of any relative living in the immediate household of the management employee or of an individual with whom the employee had a spouse-like relationship.
 - 1. Immediate family includes: spouse, children, grandchildren, siblings, parents, and grandparents of the employee or spouse of the employee, siblings of parents or grandparents of the employee or the spouse of the employee, and spouses and children of said siblings; the aforesaid relationships may be either natural, adoptive or established by marriage.
 - **2.** Leave may be secured by verbal request, but requires appropriate leave request form upon return to duty.
- **11.3.3. Short-Term Military Leave** A management employee shall be granted leave without loss of pay for the purpose of undergoing ordered pre-induction physical examination for the armed services, and for the purpose of engaging in ordered, temporary military training, not to exceed thirty (30) workdays per year.
 - 1. Short-term military leaves for active duty will be granted during the academic year when satisfactory documentation is provided to show that the military requirements cannot be satisfied during vacation periods.
 - **2.** The leave request form shall be submitted with copies of official orders attached.
- 11.3.4. Leave for Court Appearance When a management employee is required to appear as a witness in court, other than as a litigant, or to respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the connivance or misconduct of the management employee, a leave without loss of salary may be granted. The Leave Request Form shall be submitted with a copy of the subpoena attached. Witness fees received by any employee shall be remitted to the Director within ten (10) days of receipt of such fees.

Management employees will be granted leave for regularly called jury duty without requirement to remit jury duty stipend. Upon knowledge of the appearance request, the management employee shall submit a written request for an approved absence no less than ten (10) days prior to the beginning date of the leave unless the management employee receives a notice to appear at a time that is less than ten (10) days away. Reimbursement from court, shall be retained by employee.

If a Foundation holiday, not observed by the courts, occurs while an employee is serving jury duty, said employee shall receive an alternate holiday upon returning to his/her regular work assignment.

Section 12: Industrial Accident and Illness Leave

- **12.1.** Industrial accident and illness leave is provided by the Foundation for the purpose of augmenting temporary disability payments during absences due to on-the-job injury or illness (as defined by state code). Detailed information regarding industrial accident and illness leave is available from the Director.
- **12.2.** Such leaves shall be for a maximum of sixty (60) working days in any one (1) fiscal year for the same accident. In the event that the sixty (60) days will overlap into the next fiscal year, the employee shall be entitled to only those days remaining at the end of the fiscal year in which the accident or illness occurred.
- 12.3. Such leave shall not be cumulative from year-to-year. During all paid leaves of absence required as a result of industrial accident or illness, whether industrial accident leave, vacation, sick leave, or other paid leave, the employee shall endorse to the Foundation his/her wage loss benefit checks received under the Foundation's Workers' Compensation Policy. The Foundation, in turn, shall issue the employee appropriate warrants for full payment of salary and shall make normal payroll deductions.
- **12.4.** An employee receiving industrial accident leave shall remain within the State of California unless the Board of Directors authorizes travel outside the State.
- 12.5. If the employee is not medically able to resume normal duties of his/her position at the expiration of all available leaves of absence, he/she shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period of thirty-nine (39) months. If the employee is medically recovered and available during the thirty-nine (39) month period, he/she shall be employed in any vacant position in his/her previous classification over all other candidates, except for those on a reemployment list established as a result of a layoff in which case he/she shall be listed in accordance with appropriate seniority. If such an employee refuses to accept an assignment in his/her previous classification, his/her name shall be removed from the reemployment list as the Foundation is no longer obligated.

Section 13: Family Care Leave

- **13.1.** Family Care Leave is defined as leave for: birth or adoption of the employee's child; or placement of foster child with the employee; leave to care for seriously ill child, spouse, or parent; leave for the employee's own serious health condition.
- 13.2. Any Management member who has been employed one (1) year as a contract employee of the Auxiliary and who has worked at least sixty percent (60%) FTE in the previous twelve (12) month period of employment with the Auxiliary, shall be eligible for Family Care Leave up to twelve (12) work weeks within a twelve (12) month period. This leave may be taken incrementally.
- **13.3.** When applicable, the Foundation is entitled to require that a Management member's request for Family Care Leave be supported by a certification issued by a health care provider of the individual requiring leave.
- 13.4. Management members granted Family Care Leave must utilize all available paid leave and vacation benefits during the period of leave. Following the exhaustion of all paid leave and vacation benefits, the Management member shall be placed on leave-without-pay status for the remainder of the Family Care Leave.
- **13.5.** Group health plan coverage and premium payments shall be maintained on the same basis as if the employee were in paid status.
- **13.6.** The Foundation is entitled to recover from the Management member the cost of group health plan premium payments paid by the Foundation during periods of unpaid Family Care Leave if the Management member fails to return to work after the expiration of the leave.

Section 14: Vacation

14.1. Eligibility

Vacation days shall be granted to all management employees covered by this Handbook, and in accordance with the provisions contained herein.

14.2. Application for Benefits

All requests for vacation shall be in writing, and shall be submitted to the appropriate manager in advance. Management employees shall schedule

their vacations with the prior approval of the appropriate manager.

14.3. Regulations/Definitions

14.3.1. Assignment Years/Entitlement

All management personnel shall qualify for a management vacation schedule under which they may accumulate two (2) days vacation time per working month as identified in their working agreement. Accrued vacation days are credited to an employee after six (6) months of full-time employment.

Ten-month management employees are required to work 204 days per year and may accumulate twenty (20) days vacation annually. Eleven-month management employees are required to work 226 days per year and may accumulate twenty-two (22) days vacation annually. Twelve-month management employees are required to work 245 days per year and may accumulate twenty-four (24) days vacation annually.

Accrual rates granted under the provisions of any other contract or handbook shall be carried into a management position and retained as an earned benefit when it benefits the employee.

14.3.2. Break in Service

- 1. **Military and Sabbatical Leaves** are credited as service for vacation eligibility purposes, but vacation days are not accrued during such leaves.
- 2. Management employees who have had a break in service will be given credit only for the total months of service with the Foundation, except that service broken for periods of less than ninety (90) calendar days shall be disregarded when computing the number of full months completed.
- 3. Unpaid Leaves in Excess of Ninety (90) Calendar Days -shall be considered a break in service and will not be credited for vacation eligibility purposes.

14.3.3. Month

Employment is for at least fifteen (15) calendar days.

14.4. Vacation Leave Accrual Limits

Management employees shall accrue earned vacation at the rate of two (2) days per month, and the vacation time shall be vested at the end of the sixth (6) month of continuous service.

If, for any reason, a manager is unable to take his/her full annual vacation leave as of December 31st, up to 150 hours may be carried over to the next calendar year. For any balance over 150 hours on December 31st, the manager shall be paid at the manager's current rate. The Director of the Foundation may, in consultation with the cognizant college administrator, set progressively lower maximum accrued vacation hours when the grant(s) funding a manager's position are within six months of ending.

When management personnel are reassigned to non-vacation-accruing positions, whenever possible, vacation time should be taken prior to beginning the new assignment. In the event this is not feasible, vacation time will be paid when the individual leaves the Foundation at the rate earned when the vacation time was accrued. In the event the person returns to a management position, the vacation time as accrued will be restored.

14.5. Winter and Spring Recess

Vacation days taken during periods when programs are not in session must be deducted from the accrued vacation entitlement.

14.6. Use of Vacation Days in Advance of Accrual

The Director or his designee may permit management employees to use their vacation entitlement in advance of accrual for specific purposes approved on a case-by-case basis. Should the management employee resign, retire, or be reassigned to a position not eligible for vacation prior to fully earning and accruing vacation already taken, such excess days will be deducted from his/her final pay warrant in the twelve-month assignment.

14.7. Vacation Scheduling

- **14.7.1.** Must be at the convenience of the Foundation and approved by the appropriate managers.
- **14.7.2.** Each Administrative Unit is responsible for ensuring that enough management employees with authority to make decisions are on duty at all times.
- **14.7.3**. Generally, vacations should not be taken prior to completion of six (6) months in the assignment.
- **14.7.4.** Generally, no management employee, other than a terminating management employee, shall be permitted to take more than twenty (20) days at a time.
- **14.7.5.** Paid substitutes are not authorized for management employees on vacation; the person designated to act in an administrator's

absence shall assume the responsibility.

14.7.6. In the event that a vacation is interrupted by illness which is covered by the sick leave provisions herein, sick leave may be substituted for vacation days.

14.8. Exceptions

Exceptions which will not seriously affect the operation of the Foundation may be authorized by the Director or his designee.

Section 15: Holidays/Professional Development Day

Any management employee covered by this Handbook shall be entitled to all holidays designated by the Board of Directors by adoption of the Foundation's Calendar. Based on needs of specific programs, the director of the Foundation may designate any non-Federal holidays as floating holidays for that program. Days so designated may be taken at a later time as paid time off, on a one-to-one basis (e.g. no "overtime"), as agreed by the cognizant program manager.

15.1. Professional Development Day

The Board of Directors granted one professional development day scheduled at the request of the employee and approved by the appropriate administrator. In those years where it is determined by the Director, that an additional day is required in order to facilitate shut down of Foundation sites during the holiday period of the winter break, the professional development day shall be scheduled during the winter break.

15.2. Winter Break

Two (2) days to be scheduled during winter break as determined by the Director.

Section 16: Management Employees' Expenses

- 16.1. It shall be the policy of the Board of Directors to provide for the payment of the actual and necessary expenses, including traveling expenses, of employees of the Foundation incurred in the course of performing services for the Foundation, whether within or outside the Foundation, under the direction of the Board of Directors.
- **16.2**. Use of a personal vehicle for approved purposes shall be reimbursable to the employee at the rate set annually by the Board of Directors.
- **16.3.** Actual and necessary expenses incident to attendance at function outside

the Foundation shall be reimbursable to the employee within budget limitations if such events have as their purpose programs which will improve the operation of the Foundation or such events have programs which will benefit the employee in the performance of assigned Foundation duties and approval has been obtained in advance from the Director.

- **16.4.** Attendance at Foundation approved events outside of the Foundation shall be without loss of regular pay.
- **16.5**. **Unreimbursed Expenses**: The Foundation expects its managers to incur expenses routinely for hosting third parties in the course of business associated with the Foundation, representing the Foundation before federal, state and local governance and constituency groups and for maintaining the morale and cohesiveness of the employees and students. These expenses are not reimbursed by the Foundation.

Section 17: Complaint and Problem Resolution Procedures

17.1. Purpose

The purpose of this procedure is to secure at the lowest possible administrative level, solutions to work-related complaints and/or problems. All parties affirm that these procedures shall be kept as informal and as confidential as may be appropriate at each step of this procedure.

17.2. Definition

- **17.2.1.** A complaint/problem is a verbal or written allegation by any management employee alleging that an Foundation policy or procedure has been violated.
- 17.2.2. Other matters for which a specific method of review is provided by law, such as dismissal, FEPC, OSHA, EEOC, or HEW are not within the scope of this procedure.
- **17.2.3.** A "day" is a day in which the central administrative office of the Foundation is open for business and one which employees are required to work.
- **17.2.4.** The "immediate supervisor" is the lowest level management or supervisory position having immediate jurisdiction over the employee.

17.3. Procedures

17.3.1. Step 1 - Informal

Every effort should be made to resolve any complaint/problem before filing a written complaint with the employee's immediate supervisor.

17.3.2. Step II - Formal

1. The employee must present his/her complaint or problem in writing to the immediate supervisor.

This shall be a clear, concise statement of the complaint/problem, the circumstances involved, and the specific solution suggested.

The supervisor shall communicate, in writing, a decision to the employee within ten (10) days after receiving the written complaint/problem.

Within the above time limits, either party may request a personal conference with the other party.

- 2. Before advancement of the complaint to the next administrative level, either party may request mediation. Mediation services shall be arranged through the office of the Director.
- 3. In the event the employee is not satisfied with the decision, the employee may appeal the decision, in writing, to the next appropriate administrative level within five (5) days. This statement should include a copy of the original complaint, the decision rendered, and a clear, concise statement of the reason for the appeal.
- 4. If the employee is not satisfied with the decision or outcome of mediation, Step 3 may be repeated at each administrative level until it reaches the Director or the complaint/problem has been resolved.

Section 18: Personnel Records

18.1. Personal Information

It is the responsibility of all employees to keep the Foundation advised of personal information that affects benefits status:

Change of address

Change of name

Change of marital status

Birth of new family members

Cards are available from the Director to convey this information. It is extremely important to keep this information up to date.

18.2. Inspection of Personnel File

Materials in personnel files of management employees which may serve as a basis for affecting the status of their employment are to be made available for the inspection of the person involved. Every employee shall have the right to inspect such materials upon request during normal business hours. Such material is not to include ratings, reports, or records which (1) were obtained prior to the employment of the person involved; (2) were prepared by identifiable screening committee members, or (3) were obtained in connection with an application process for another position with the Foundation.

Information outside normal personnel operations, except material mentioned in the second paragraph of this section, shall not be entered or filed unless and until the employee is given notice and an opportunity to review and comment thereon. An employee shall have the right to enter, and have attached to any such statement, his/her own comments thereon.

Section 19: Conflict of Interest

19.1. All employees should avoid any conflict between their own interests and the interests of the Foundation. Foundation officers/employees are required to be alert to situations where a conflict of interest may occur in relation to their duties with the Foundation.

- **19.2.** All Foundation employees are by law subject to restrictions of their outside activities/enterprises/employment where a conflict of interest would occur.
- 19.3. A Foundation employee/officer shall not engage in any outside employment, activity or enterprise which is inconsistent, incompatible, or in conflict with his/her duties with the Foundation. A Foundation employee/officer shall not perform any work, service, or counsel for compensation outside of his/her Foundation responsibilities where any part of his/her efforts will be subject to approval by any other officer, employee, committee of the Foundation, or of the Board.
- **19.4.** Any violation of these prohibited activities shall be cause for disciplinary action which may result in dismissal or prosecution under current law regarding dismissal proceedings. Any such disciplinary action is subject to appeal rights in accordance with current law and Foundation policies/procedures.

Section 20: Secondary Employment

Employees are not expected to engage in any outside employment which may interfere with assigned responsibilities, jeopardize the Foundation or its assets, or require personal attention or work that may alter physical or mental effectiveness.

Section 21: Sexual Harassment

It is against policy for any employee, male or female, to sexually harass another employee. Requests for sexual favors, whether verbal or physical, are considered sexual harassment when they are made a condition of employment, used as a basis for employment decisions, or interfere with work performance. See Foundation Sexual Harassment Policy for further information.

Section 22: Alcohol and Drugs

Any employee found to be using or possessing alcoholic beverages or any illegal drugs while at work is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Section 23: Emergencies and Natural Disasters

Managers should familiarize themselves with information provided by the Foundation on emergencies and natural disasters. Copies of appropriate publications should be available for ready reference.

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Management Employee Handbook

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Management Employee Handbook and understand that it contains information on general personnel policies of the Foundation for Grossmont and Cuyamaca Colleges. I will familiarize myself with the information contained in the Handbook and understand that I am governed by its contents.

This Handbook is published by the Foundation for the general guidance of all employees in matters related to Foundation personnel practices. Specific questions or concerns regarding any of the information contained herein should be referred to the Foundation Director for clarification or additional information. This handbook is not intended to modify or supersede any Board of Directors or **Foundation** policy or procedure or any provision of law.

Name (please print)	
 Signature	 Date

Full-Time Management Staff Salary Schedule

Monthly Schedule							
Title	SALARY GRADE	RATE TYPE	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E
Program Manager I	3	Monthly	\$5,962	\$6,201	\$6,450	\$6,707	\$6,975
Development Manager	4	Monthly	\$6,378	\$6,632	\$6,898	\$7,174	\$7,461
Program Manager II	5	Monthly	\$6,822	\$7,094	\$7,377	\$7,674	\$7,980
Program Activity Director	6	Monthly	\$7,293	\$7,588	\$7,890	\$8,205	\$8,536
Program Director I	6	Monthly	\$7,293	\$7,588	\$7,890	\$8,205	\$8,536
Career Pathways Manager	6	Monthly	\$7,293	\$7,588	\$7,890	\$8,205	\$8,536
Program Manager III	7	Monthly	\$7,801	\$8,114	\$8,439	\$8,777	\$9,128
Infection Disease Program Mngr.	8	Monthly	\$8,343	\$8,677	\$9,025	\$9,387	\$9,760
Regional Director Health	9	Monthly	\$8,924	\$9,281	\$9,651	\$10,037	\$10,438
Regional Guided Pathways Manager	9	Monthly	\$8,924	\$9,281	\$9,651	\$10,037	\$10,438
Director of Development	9	Monthly	\$8,924	\$9,281	\$9,651	\$10,037	\$10,438
Director of Operations	10	Monthly	\$9,545	\$9,925	\$10,323	\$10,736	\$11,166
Program Director II	11	Monthly	\$10,207	\$10,616	\$11,041	\$11,482	\$11,943
Program Director III	12	Monthly	\$10,918	\$11,354	\$11,807	\$12,281	\$12,771
Dr. of Strategic Partnerships	13	Monthly	\$11,675	\$12,143	\$12,629	\$13,133	\$13,659
Regional Consortium Chair	14	Monthly	\$12,488	\$12,987	\$13,505	\$14,047	\$14,610

Longevity (Management): Beginning the 6th year of service in the Foundation, an employee will receive a longevity increment of \$1,427. Every year thereafter, this longevity increment will be increased by \$320 per year.

Executive Salary Schedule

Monthly Schedule										
Title	RATE TYPE	STEP A	STEP B	STEP C	STEP D	STEP E	STEP F	STEP G	STEP H	STEP I
CEO	Monthly	\$14,583	\$14,729	\$14,876	\$15,025	\$15,175	\$15,327	\$15,480	\$15,635	\$15,791

Longevity (Executive): Beginning the 10th year of service in the Foundation, an employee will receive a longevity increment \$323 per year.

Employment Categories of the Foundation for Grossmont for Cuyamaca Colleges

Per actions of the Board of Directors of the FGCC, the Foundation currently uses the following employment categories:

Employment Category	Description	Benefits
Grant-Funded Employees	Individuals normally scheduled to work 20 or more hours per week and 1050 or more hours per year and is (1) an employee employed for a research project, workshop, institute, or other special project funded by a grant, contract, or gift; or (2) an employee whose contract of employment is for a fixed term not exceeding three years.	Full benefits*
Management Employees	Individuals designated as "Management Employees" by the Board of Directors. Management employees may be regular or temporary. In accordance with California Education Code section 72672: "the regulations may permit retirement benefits, or permanent status benefits, or both, to be withheld from temporary and executive employees of each auxiliary organization." A temporary employee includes "an employee employed for a special project funded by any grant, contract, or gift"	Full benefits*
Short-Term and Other Temporary Employees	Individuals scheduled to work 1049 or fewer hours per year.	Benefits for short- term and other temporary staff**

*Full benefits include:

Vacation Health & Welfare

Sick Leave Medical Other Leave Benefits (e.g. personal necessity) Dental Vision

Long Term Disability Insurance

Worker Comp

FICA Medicare

CalPERS (California Public Employees'

Retirement System)

Holidays (when in paid status the day before or day after the holiday; paid as regular, scheduled hours)

**Benefits for short-term and other temporary staff are:

State Disability Insurance Worker Comp **FICA** Medicare

All descriptions and provisions are subject to change per action of the Foundation's Board of Directors.